
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, May 17, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Executive Session held May 3, 2021 

 

8. Appoint and Swear In Councilmember, Post 2 

9. Employee Recognition 
• April 2021 Employee of the Month 
• Employee Service Awards 
• National Public Works Week, May 16 – 22, 2021 

 
BUSINESS 
 

10. ZA-C2100140: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 092B 007 Land Lot 
375 4th District, Located at 565 Highway 9 North, consisting of 0.147 acres, from LI (Light Industrial 
District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on April 12, 2021 
and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021.  

 

11. ZA-C2100141: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP D01 049 Land Lot 
439 4th District, Located at 26 Maple Street South, consisting of 2.00 acres, from CBD (Central 
Business District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on April 
12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021.  
 

12. ZA-C2100142: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP D01 033 Land Lot 
440 4th District, Located at 0 Church Street, from TB (Town Business District) to INST (Institutional 
District). Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 
2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021.  
 

13. ZA-C2100143: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP D01 021 Land Lot 
439 and 446 4th District, Located at 170 Academy Ave, consisting of 2.30 acres, from CBD (Central 
Business District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on April 
12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021.  
 

14. ZA-C2100144: Dawsonville Downtown Development Authority has requested a zoning amendment 
for TMP D01 022 Land Lot 446 4th District, Located at 41 Mills Ford Road, consisting of 2.99 acres, 
from CBD (Central Business District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates: Planning 
Commission on April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 
17, 2021.  
 

15. ZA-C2100146: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 083 043 Land Lot 
514 4th District, Located at 695 Maple Street South, consisting of 1.00 acres, from R2 (Single-family 
Residential District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on 
April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021.  
 

16. ZA-C2100147: Dawsonville Downtown Development Authority has requested a zoning amendment 
for TMP 082 006 007 Land Lot 300, 301 and 312 4th District, Located at 1307 Shoal Creek Road, 
consisting of 1.40 acres, from R1 (Restricted Single-family Residential District) to INST (Institutional 
District). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 
2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021.  

 



AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, May 17, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 3 
 

17. ZA-C2100148: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 093 009 Land Lot 
58 4th District and Land Lot 428 13th District, Located at 244 Memory Lane, consisting of 3.20 acres, 
from R3 (Single-family Residential District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates: 
Planning Commission on April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision 
on May 17, 2021.  

 

18. ZA-C2100149: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 093 055 079 Land 
Lot 576 4th District, Located at 140 Crocket Drive, consisting of 0.334 acres, from R3 (Single-family 
Residential District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on 
April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021.  

 

19. ZA-C2100150: Dawsonville Downtown Development Authority has requested a zoning amendment 
for TMP 092B 014 Land Lot 376 and 377 4th District, Located at 253 Gober Sosebee Street South, 
consisting of 0.728 acres, from LI (Light Industrial) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing 
Dates: Planning Commission on April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a 
decision on May 17, 2021.  

 

20. ZA-C2100151: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 091 058 Land Lot 
104 4th District, consisting of 5.0 acres, from R1 (Restricted Single-family Residential District) to INST 
(Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on April 12, 2021 and City Council 
on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021  

 

21. ZA-C2100152: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 082 013 Land Lot 
370 4th District, Located at 326 Bent Ridge Drive, consisting of 0.52 acres, from R3 (Single-family 
Residential District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on 
April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021.  

 

22. ZA-C2100153: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 082 004 001 Land 
Lot 310 4th District, Located at 327 Burt Creek Road, consisting of 0.11 acres, from R1 (Restricted 
Single family Residential District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates: Planning 
Commission on April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 
17, 2021.  

 

23. ZA-C2100154: City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 093 041 001 Land 
Lot 511 4th District, Located 16 Farmington Circle, consisting of 0.057 acres, from R6 (Multiple-family 
Residential District) to INST (Institutional District). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on 
April 12, 2021 and City Council on May 3, 2021.  City Council for a decision on May 17, 2021  

 

24. Planning Commission Appointment, Post 3 
25. Budget Amendment Requests 

a. Catering Kitchen  
b. Skate Park 
c. Electric Golf Cart 
d. Concrete Slabs for Shelters 

26. Highway Veteran’s Flag Program 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

27. Haunted Ghost Tour – Use of Memorial Gardens by Georgia Racing Hall of Fame 
28. Georgia Racing Hall of Fame – Moonshine Festival Outside Bar in Winner’s Circle  
29. FY 2021-2022 Proposed Budget Presentation 

 
 
 
 



AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, May 17, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

30. Bob Bolz, City Manager 

31. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

 
     ADJOURNMENT   
 
 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, June 7, 2021 
 

 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 
 

a. APPROVE MINUTES  
• REGULAR MEETING AND EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD MAY 3, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING AND EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD MAY 3, 2021 
 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 















Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:         APPOINT AND SWEAR IN COUNCILMEMBER, POST 2  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
 TO APPOINT AND SWEAR IN COUNCILMEMBER FOR POST 2  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
       

• COUNCILMEMBER POST 2 UNEXPIRED TERM ENDS 12/31/2021 
• STEPHEN TOLSON RESIGNED MAY 10, 2021 

 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
  
 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
         
 
 
 
 

     
 
 
 REQUESTED BY:   Mike Eason, Mayor    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8   
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION   

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• APRIL 2021 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH – STEPHEN MCNEAL 
• MAY SERVICE AWARDS 

 WESTIN LEE – 4 YEARS 
 BEVERLY BANISTER – 6 YEARS 

• PROCLAMATION – NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK, MAY 16 – 22, 2021 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    9     
 

 

 



         Proclamation 
National Public Works Week 

May 16-22, 2021 
 

WHEREAS, public works infrastructure, facilities and services are of vital 
importance to sustainable communities and to the health, safety and well-being of 
the people of the City of Dawsonville; and, 
 
WHEREAS, such facilities and services could not be provided without the dedicated 
efforts of public works professionals, engineers, managers and employees from State 
and local units of Government and the private sector, who are responsible for and 
must plan, design, build, operate, and maintain the transportation, water supply, 
water treatment and solid waste systems, public buildings, and other structures and 
facilities essential to serve our citizens; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in 
the United States of America to gain knowledge of and to maintain a progressive 
interest and understand the importance of public works and public works programs 
in their respective communities,  
 
WHEREAS, the year 2021 marks the 61st annual National Public Works Week 
sponsored by the American Public Works Association be it now, 
 
RESOLVED, I, Mike Eason, Mayor of the City of Dawsonville, do hereby designate 
the week May 16-22, 2021 as National Public Works Week; and I urge all our people 
to join with representatives of the American Public Works Association and 
government agencies in activities and ceremonies designed to pay tribute to our 
public works professionals, engineers, managers and employees and to recognize the 
substantial contributions they have made to our national health, safety, welfare and 
quality of life. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the 
City of Dawsonville to be affixed on this 17th day of May 2021. 
 
 

         
__________________________ 
Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



































                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:  PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENT, POST 3         
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
      TO APPOINT SANDRA SAWYER TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION, POST 3 TO FILL THE 

UNEXPIRED TERM OF SUE THIESEN THROUGH 08/04/2022 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      

VETTING PROCESS IS COMPLETE 
 

 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
  
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
         
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:  Donna Blanton, Human Resource Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   24   
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT: CATERING KITCHEN – BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 05/17/2021  
     

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
Funding to complete floor demolition and install plumbing for long-awaited catering kitchen within the GRHOF adjacent to the Gordon 
Pirkle Room. 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
This will increase the rentability of the facility and subsequent revenue generation while meeting requests from frequent users of the 
facility for such a facility. Project will include installation of water – sewer to the facility, plumbing to include a men’s and women’s rest 
room in the facility, and plumbing to include installation of kitchen area floor drain, two compartment commercial kitchen sink, vegetable 
sink, mop sink, hot water heater, and ice maker hook-up point. 
 

     OPTIONS: 
Bids obtained from three vendors for installation of sewer line from manhole and waterline from main, including, 

• Innovative Plumbing & Construction - $14,800.00 
• Townley Construction - $13,100.00 
• Watson All Purpose Plumbing - $15,500.00 

Bids obtained from three vendors for needed demolition, installation of pluming for two public rest rooms, installation of four sinks, 
installation of 50 gal water heater, installation of ice maker hook up. 

• Innovative Plumbing & Construction - $18,500.00 
• Townley Construction - $19,200.00 
• Watson All Purpose Plumbing - $20,599.00 

 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Staff recommend selection of Townley Construction for installation of waterline and sewer service at a cost of $13,100.00 to be paid for 
out of General Fun reserves possibly reimbursed by SPLOST VII. 
 
Staff recommend selection of Innovative Plumbing & Construction for installation of rest room, sinks, hot water heater and ice maker 
hook-up at a cost of $18,500.00 to be paid out of General Fund reserves possibly reimbursed by SPLOST VII. 
 
Total: $31,600.00 
 

 
     DEPARTMENT:  Public Works – GRHOF 

 
 

REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #____25a_______ 
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT: SKATE PARK – BUDGET AMENDMENT     __________________ 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING: _____________05/17/2020  
  

 
 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
To build skate park in Main Street Park 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 
Since initial design of Main State Park, a skate park has been planned.  Staff are seeing 10-15 skaters in the park and at the Farmer’s 
Market daily. This creates a hazard for other park users, especially small children, as when a skate boarder loses control of his board, it 
often careens out of control striking other park users. While this use is not allowed, we have a number of users that could benefit if a 
skating area is built wile at the same time improving the non-skaters park experience. Source of funds – general fund reserves with 
possible reimbursement from SPLOST VII. 
 
 

     OPTIONS: Staff researched modular skate park elements with commercial grade metal frame construction and composite skate 
surfaces for longevity, design options and cost estimates from no less than five vendors. For maintenance and warranty work as well as 
shipping and installation, an U.S. based company is recommended. Desired design and layout are shown in attached picture. Company 
must provide assembly and installation. 

• American Ramp Company - $43,000.00 includes shipping and installation, American company. Design #6950. This company 
is the “Sole Source” vendor and the only manufacturer in the United States that offers an all steel skatepark ramp system. 

• Mid-Atlantic Products - $43,000.00 not including shipping, installation or import duty fees, not American company. 
• Skatewave Modular Skate Park – did not return phone call or provide bid. 
• OC Ramps – all wood construction, no installation provided, City would have to assemble, American company. 
• Various other online companies sell by the piece and design, not commercial grade, do not install. 

 
Construct 76’ x 38’ concrete pad for mounting modular skate park elements. Staff are still seeking bids for concrete pad. Estimated cost 
$23,000.00. Once bids are received, staff recommend and request permission to proceed with lowest bid at a cost of no more than 
$25,000.00 for the concrete pad. 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Staff recommend approval of $43,000.00 for modular skate park equipment to be purchased from lowest bidder American Ramp 
Company. 
Staff recommend approval per lowest bid of up to $25,000.00 for the concrete pad. Total expense $68,000.00 
 
 

 
     DEPARTMENT:  Public Works - park  

 
     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #____25b ______ 
 

 

 









                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   ELECTRIC GOLF CART – BUDGET AMENDMENT  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ SPLOST VI    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF A GENERAL FUND RESERVES BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $7,800.00 FOR THE PURCHASE OF AN ELECTRIC GOLF CART 

 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• USED IN PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT MAINLY AT MAIN STREET PARK TO 
CONSERVE GASOLINE. ELECTRIC VEHICLE IS ALSO QUIETER THAN THE ATV. 

• THREE VERBAL QUOTES OBTAINED 
 NORTH ATLANTA GOLF CART, $7,800 
 CADDYSHACK GOLF CART, $8,400 
 GOLF CART OF CANTON, $12,002 

             

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
STAFF RECOMMENDS LOW QUOTE FROM NORTH ATLANTA GOLF CART FOR $7,800 
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   25c     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   CONCRETE SLABS FOR SHELTERS – BUDGET AMENDMENT  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ SPLOST VI    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF A GENERAL FUND RESERVES BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $12,680.00 FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF TWO CONCRETE SLABS 

 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• TWO SHELTERS AT MAIN STREET PARK HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED; CONCRETE 
PADS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE SHELTERS FOR USE 

• THREE INFORMAL SEALED BIDS OBTAINED 
 JERRY TOWNLEY CONCRETE, $12,680 
 HILL CONCRETE, $14,700 
 GEORGIA EARTH AND PIPE LLC, $14,670 

             

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
STAFF RECOMMENDS LOW BID BY JERRY TOWNLEY CONCRETE FOR $12,680 
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   25d     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   HIGHWAY VETERAN’S FLAG PROGRAM 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO APPROVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF DAWSONVILLE AND ETOWAH MASONIC 
LODGE #222 FOR CITY TO ASSIST WITH INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL OF VETERANS 
FLAGS ON HWY 53, HWY 9 AND THE HISTORIC COURTHOUSE 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• LODGE HAS A PROGRAM TO DISPLAY FLAGS IN HONOR OF VETERANS AND IS IN 
NEED OF ASSISTANCE; CITY’S ROLE WILL ONLY INCLUDE HELP WITH INSTALLING 
AND REMOVING FLAGS.   

• FLAGS ARE DISPLAYED 3X PER YEAR AROUND MEMORIAL DAY, INDEPENDENCE 
DAY AND VETERANS DAY 

 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   26     
 

 

 









                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   HAUNTED GHOST TOUR – USE OF MEMORIAL GARDENS BY GEORGIA 

RACING HALL OF FAME 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST PERMISSION TO USE MEMORIAL GARDENS FOR A HAUNTED GHOST TOUR 
OPERATED BY THE GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME 

 
    PRESENTATION AND REQUEST FROM MUSEUM DIRECTOR, CINDY ELLIOT 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Cindy Elliott, Dawsonville History Museum Director 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   27     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME – MOONSHINE FESTIVAL OUTSIDE BAR IN 

WINNER’S CIRCLE 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
TO DISCUSS USING THE WINNER’S CIRCLE FOR A BAR AREA DURING THE MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE 
FESTIVAL TO BE OPERATED BY THE GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME 
 
REQUEST AND PRESENTATION BY MUSEUM DIRECTOR CINDY ELLIOTT 
     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Cindy Elliott, Dawsonville History Museum Director  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   28     
 

 

 









     SUBJECT: FY 2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET PRESENTATION

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 05/17/2021 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

PRESENTATION OF THE FY 2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

• COPIES OF THE DRAFT BUDGET WILL BE PRESENTED TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL AT THE
MEETING

• ONCE PRESENTED TO CITY COUNCIL, DRAFT BUDGET WILL BE POSTED TO THE WEBSITE
AND AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC UPON REQUEST

     OPTIONS: 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR 

      AGENDA ITEM #    29 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     30     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – MAY 11, 2021 

FOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MAY 3, 2021 

 
COVID: COVID numbers are improving but there remains much to be done. Staff continue our pandemic 
protocol and modified behavior. Several staff have begun or completed the vaccination process, and all 
are being encouraged to do so. We are allowing them to get their vaccination on work time. At the 
present time, no employees are out due to COVID. Governor Kemp issued an Executive Order on April 
30th that went into effect May 1st. The general highlights of the order, included:  

• Modified the social distancing and sanitation requirements for residents and visitors to ‘strongly 
encouraged’. 

• Eliminated the restaurant and bar table distancing requirements and workers mask 
requirement. 

• Eliminated all specific requirements for gyms and fitness centers, movie theaters, body art 
studios, estheticians, hair stylists and massage therapy. 

• Reduced the requirements for conventions. 
• Eliminated the requirement that childcare facilities prohibit all unnecessary visitors. 
• Provided that live performance venues, regardless of seating capacity, are only required to 

follow the guidelines for all organizations, and such venues my implement additional measures 
in conjunction with the performer or organizer. 

• Maintained that professional, collegiate, and high school sports organizations and events shall 
operate pursuant to the rules or guidelines issued by their respective league, conference, or 
association. 

• Clarified that graduation ceremonies are only required to follow the guidelines for all. 
 
American Rescue Plan:  
 
May 10th the US Treasury opened a portal for Cities over 50,000 population and Counties to request 
there ARP monies.  Cities under 50,000 population ARP monies will go to the State for them to 
distribute.  The State is then allowed to take up to 30 days or longer, if they get approval, to send the 
Cities their distribution.  We are still looking at approximately $1.022M.  Two webinars are scheduled for 
additional information about how these monies can be spent and we have just received a 151-page 
manual of procedures.  It looks like the 5 categories below are the only way to spend this money. Each 
of the five will have their own restrictions but at this point, the restrictions have not been shared with 
recipients. 

1. To respond to the pandemic or its negative impacts, including assistance to households, small 
businesses or tourism 

2. Premium pay to eligible workers 
3. For the provision of government services to the extent of the reduction of revenue 
4. To make necessary investments in water, sewer or broadband infrastructure 
5. May transfer its allocation to a private nonprofit, tribal organization or special purpose unit of 

State for purposes above. 



Gas Shortage: Shannon Harbin the county fuel site coordinator has asked everyone to be vigilant and 
not drive vehicles any more than needed. Please be ready for gas outages as this situation progresses. 
He will be monitoring the situation and our inventory closely. On Monday, they had 3000 gallons of gas 
and 4452 gallons of diesel. Their distributor has advised to order gas as usual, but they are not sure they 
will be able to fill all orders. The county is limiting vehicles to 10 gallons per fill-up and if no supplies are 
replenished, they will only fill critical needs, such as LE and EMS. Distributors hope to have systems up 
and running by Friday, May 14th but that remains to be seen. 

Census Numbers: We have been told that these should be received soon. Once we receive them, we will 
pass them along. 
 
Chamber of Commerce Annual Gala: This event was held in the GRHOF/DHM on May 1st and was a 
great success. 
 
Event Permits and Main Street Park: We are getting numerous requests for groups that want to rent 
the entirety of Main Street Park closing the park and the parking lots around the City Hall complex.  We 
do not allow the entire park to be rented, nor do we allow events to take over the front parking lot of 
the GRHOF/DHM due to it serving the museum and the Distillery. We do allow events the use of the rear 
parking lot and the amphitheater. Very soon we will be renting the Farmer’s Market and our two new 
shelters in Main Street Park. We are awaiting delivery of picnic tables that are in port but cannot yet be 
unloaded do to COVID-related staff shortages. 
 
GRHOF/DHM: Tremendous improvement continues. We have bids for the initial plumbing work in the 
space adjacent to the Pirkle Room for conversion to a warming kitchen.  These will be brought to the 
City Council at the May 17th meeting. 
 
Paving Repairs to Main Street, Memory Lane & Jack Heard Street: Turnipseed has released the bid 
documents for advertisement for the paving of Main Street, Jack Heard and Memory Lane as we want to 
pave these at the same time if funding will be adequate. Bid opening is scheduled for June 10th.  

Sidewalks: The sidewalk bid documents are complete and out to bid with a June 10th bid opening 
scheduled. 

Main Street Park: Progress continues as we work to increase the amenities and operation of this 
wonderful addition to the city, including:  

• The dog park is nearing completion with the Eagle Scout candidate planting trees and carrying 
out some related work. The facility is already receiving significant use. We are adding signs 
within Main Street Park directing users to the dog park and vice versa. 

• The City Council approved the IGA for the walkway from Main Street Park to the library. We are 
awaiting word from the county. Due to time constraints, the Eagle Scout candidate and to 
withdraw this project and will be carrying out another project elsewhere. 

• With approval by the City Council, fitness equipment has been ordered and delivered. In the 



coming weeks, staff are obtaining bids for the concrete pads, and once complete, will begin 
installing the 14 fitness stations. 

• Construction is complete on the two picnic shelters, and bids for the concrete floors will be 
brought to the City Council at the May 17th meeting. 

• Bids for modular skate park equipment have been obtained and will be brought before the City 
Council on May 17th.  

• The City Council approved a fee structure for rental of the Farmer’s Market pavilion, the two 
new picnic shelters and the covered area adjacent to the Main Street Park rest room. Signs have 
been installed to enable reservation process as well as picnic tables ordered for installation. 

• The Eagle Scout candidate is moving forward with construction of a lending library that will be 
installed near the playground. It will be registered and will receive donated books from a 
national registry as well as local people. We look forward to this project becoming reality. 

• The May 7th Ribbon Cutting and Grand Opening of Main Street Park with food trucks and other 
activities was a great success with over 500 in attendance. Numerous food trucks were offered, 
a ribbon cutting and butterfly release, free toys, and snow cones for children. Our next food 
truck night is June 11th, and it too will be held in Main Street Park. The July 9th food truck night 
will also be held in Main Street Park and it will include a movie on the lawn sponsored by 
Mountain Lake Church. 

Farmer’s Market: The market opened April 17th and continues to be opened every Wednesday and 
Friday from 3-7PM and Saturdays 8-12. Saturdays have been busy and as more produce comes in, we 
anticipate greater sales on Wednesdays and Fridays, which thus far haven’t been good. 

Board of Education: We continue to work closely with our local schools. As you know, an IGA was 
approved between the BOE and the City regarding use of the parking lots for events in exchange for tap 
fees. Also, we recognized our teachers during Teacher Appreciation Week. Main Street Park and the 
playground are one of the rewards offered in Robinson Elementary School’s PBIS Rewards Program. The 
RES 5th Grade has a community service day planned for Main Street Park. They will plant flowers, put up 
bird feeds, and leave feeling rocks in some pine strawed area. RES 3rd grade is planning their end of the 
year picnic at Main Street Park. We are proud of this relationship and fortunate to be blessed with great 
educators in our community. 

Personnel: 

• Jacob Barr was promoted to Utility Operations Manager and we are advertising for his vacant 
Crew Chief position. 

• Additionally, we are actively seeking some summer laborers providing assistance to both the 
Public Works and the Utility Departments but thus far interest has been lacking. 
 

Leak Adjustments thru April 13, 2021 

 Description    Water  Sewage  Total    

Hot water heater leak    $56.63  $95.78  $152.41 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/17/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH APRIL 30, 2021  

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   31      
 

 

 



 

 

   
  

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

   
  

 
 

   
  

  

    

    

     

    
  

      

  

    
  
  
  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



 
  
  

  
 

  

 
 

  
  

 
 
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

  

  

    
     

      

 

   
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

  
  
  
  

  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  

 



 

 
 

 
 

  

   
   

   
    
  

    
  
    

  
   

  

     

    

     

    
 

      

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

  

  
  

 

  

  
  

 
 
 
 
 

  
  

  

 

 




